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          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Good morning. My

          3  name is Leroy Comrie.  I Chair the Committee on

          4  Rules, Privileges and Elections. I would like to

          5  acknowledge the Council members that are present,

          6  starting at above me, not literally, but

          7  figuratively, Chairman of the Finance Committee,

          8  David Weprin; to my left is Council Member Tony

          9  Avella from Queens; Councilwoman Madeline Provenzano

         10  from the Bronx; Council Member Lew Fidler from

         11  Brooklyn; and we have joining us, in the cheering

         12  section, is Council Member Diana Reyna from

         13  Brooklyn.  So, good morning, everyone.

         14                 Today we have before us three

         15  candidates, for our Advice and Consent Review, all

         16  for appointments to the Board of Health.  They are:

         17                 Bruce Charney Vladeck, Ph.D., six-

         18  year term, whose term would expire on May 31st,

         19  2008.

         20                 David Vlahov, Ph.D., whose term would

         21  expire on May 31st, 2004.

         22                 Sixto Ramon Caro, M.D., whose term

         23  would expire on May 31st, 2004.

         24                 The main duty of the Board of Health

         25  is to promulgate the New York City Health Code.  The

                                                            4

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  Board also legislates on all matters and subjects to

          3  which the power and authority of the Department of

          4  Health and Mental Hygiene extends. In addition, a

          5  Board may issue or revoke certain permits such as

          6  for food vendors.  It is also charged with the

          7  responsibility of declaring conditions to be

          8  nuisances and to order the condition abated or

          9  corrected.

         10                 In addition to the three candidates

         11  before us, the Committee will also consider a

         12  resolution consisting of proposed changes to the

         13  Council Rules.  A number of these are technical in

         14  nature, such as conforming Committee jurisdiction to

         15  the agency names which were changed as part of the

         16  enactment of last year's Charter Commission

         17  referendum, or recently adopted local laws.  The

         18  purpose of the major rule change, however, consists

         19  of a new method for adopting resolutions, some of

         20  which were previously known as immediate

         21  consideration.

         22                 The proposed change will send an

         23  appropriate resolution to a Committee where it will

         24  receive a prompt hearing. And at the discretion of

         25  the Committee Chair, may be voted on by a voice
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          2  vote.  Approved resolutions will go to a Stated

          3  meeting either as part of the General Orders

          4  Calendar or to a new section to be called

          5  Resolutions, where a voice vote will occur.

          6                 Also, added to a Stated Meeting

          7  Agenda will be a discussion period for any

          8  resolution that would be considered in this new

          9  Resolution Section.

         10                 Last Rule 10.80, which requires that

         11  each Chairperson provide a financial disclosure

         12  report to the Rules Committee is being repealed.

         13  This action is primarily being taken because the

         14  same financial disclosure report is already filed,

         15  by law, with the Conflicts of Interest Board by

         16  every Council member, not just Committee

         17  Chairpersons.  At the Conflicts of Interest Board

         18  these reports are available for public inspection.

         19  Henceforth, this Committee will no longer be

         20  required to provide the secure storage and handling

         21  of these reports.

         22                 At this time, we would like to

         23  proceed with the review of the three candidates for

         24  advice and consent, and we would like to start with

         25  Mr. Vladeck.
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          2                 DR. VLADECK:  Vladeck.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Vladeck, sorry,

          4  I will try to get that right before the end of the

          5  day.

          6                 Yes, we have to, as part of the new

          7  Rules of the Council, we ask you to swear in, if you

          8  could raise your right hand?  Thank you.

          9                 MR. O'MALLEY:  Do you solemnly swear

         10  or affirm that the testimony you are about to give

         11  us, is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

         12  the truth?

         13                 DR. VLADECK:  I do.

         14                 MR. O'MALLEY:  Please state your name

         15  and affiliation for the record?

         16                 DR. VLADECK:  My name is Bruce

         17  Vladeck.  I am employed by Mount Sinai Medical

         18  Center.

         19                 MR. O'MALLEY:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, we have

         21  also been joined by Council Member Melinda Katz from

         22  Queens.  Oh, and Council Member Yvette Clarke from

         23  Brooklyn.

         24                 Do you have an opening statement,

         25  Sir?
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          2                 DR. VLADECK:  Just for a minute, if I

          3  may, Mr. Chairman, let me tell you what an honor and

          4  a privilege it is to be here before you today in

          5  response to this appointment.  I have been involved

          6  in health care in one way or another, professionally

          7  for almost 30 years, most of that time in the City

          8  of New York.  And even within that context the

          9  opportunity to serve on the Board of Health provides

         10  me with an opportunity, I believe, to contribute to

         11  the well being of my City and the health of its

         12  citizens in an important and valuable way.  And I am

         13  very honored by it and very pleased to be before you

         14  this morning.  And I thank you for the opportunity.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  We are being

         16  joined by Council Member Maria Baez from the Bronx,

         17  good morning.

         18                 Is there someone from the Mayor's

         19  Office here that is supposed to respond to a

         20  question?  Well, we are going to do that now

         21  regarding, there was some possible conflicts that

         22  had to be, and a letter has to be sent out regarding

         23  some possible questions or clarity on a couple of

         24  issues, primarily dealing with some issues with some

         25  business dealings with the City that Mr. Vladeck has
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          2  some current memberships that may - -

          3                 MR. LOPEZ:  Good morning.  My name is

          4  Wilfredo Lopez, I am the General Counsel for Health

          5  at the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.  I

          6  am not from the Mayor's Office, but my understanding

          7  from speaking to Anthony Crowell from the Mayor's

          8  Counsel Office, that the understanding with Mr.

          9  Goldstein, that after the appointment appropriate

         10  conflicts of interest, letters would be written

         11  through the Conflicts of Interest Board to address

         12  any issues, with regard to all the candidates.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.  I just

         14  wanted to make that clear up front, because I know

         15  the members have read some, their backgrounds and

         16  just wanted to make sure, because that is a standard

         17  letter that has been going out for the candidates

         18  prior to their, or as soon as they are being

         19  considered for a position.

         20                 So, but you are saying it would be

         21  done after they are appointed.

         22                 MR. LOPEZ:  That is correct, and that

         23  was the case with the previous five candidates also.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Right, we have

         25  not seen those letters yet, so I can, I am just a
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          2  little concerned that they are actually going out,

          3  and it is an important part of the process, just to

          4  protect those persons that are serving in the

          5  capacity.

          6                 And also, so the candidates can abide

          7  by the Rulings of the Board, and to protect people

          8  that want to be in public service.  We want to try

          9  to enhance their ability to do, to be as effective

         10  as possible, and not to be constrained by unknowns.

         11                 MR. LOPEZ:  Absolutely.  And my

         12  understanding is Mr. Crowell is taking care of

         13  those.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, thank you.

         15    All right. Mr. Vladeck, I am sorry, I just wanted

         16  to get that - -

         17                 DR. VLADECK:  Understood.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: - -  out of the

         19  way before we started questioning.

         20                 You have had some extensive writings

         21  and articles, and you, at one point, talked about

         22  the fact that health care is the Rorschach test of

         23  American political ideology, and what does that

         24  mean?

         25                 DR. VLADECK:  Well, it was, I think,
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          2  the correct quotes was that Medicare was the

          3  Rorschach test.  And it was in response to a

          4  reporters question about the possibilities for

          5  compromise in the Congress this year on prescription

          6  drug benefit under Medicare and other Medicare-

          7  related issues.  And my comments about the degree of

          8  ideological division around Medicare- related issues

          9  in the Congress and in the national political scene.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Do you think

         11  that Congress should get into Medicare funding and

         12  pharmaceutical funding for senior citizens and other

         13  persons that are in need or have a limited ability

         14  to pay?

         15                 DR. VLADECK:  Well I think it's

         16  disgraceful that there is not yet a prescription

         17  drug benefit as an integral of the Medicare program,

         18  and I hope this year there is finally some

         19  significant progress in that direction.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  How is it that

         21  you came to this position today, or have been able

         22  to be considered to be on the Board?

         23                 DR. VLADECK:  I honestly do not know

         24  in any detail, Mr. Chairman.  I understand that the

         25  Mayor had appointed a Committee to advise him with
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          2  the transition and on personnel issues associated

          3  with the human services.

          4                 One of the things that Committee was

          5  asked to do was to make recommendations about

          6  membership on the Board of Health, and somehow in

          7  that process my name was suggested by one of the

          8  members, and merged as part of the Committee's

          9  recommendations to the Mayor.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  And you have an

         11  extensive background where a lot of memberships to

         12  different boards and affiliations with a lot of

         13  significant organizations around the City.  How are

         14  you going to be able to manage that work load, as

         15  per se, to come with and be actively involved on

         16  this Board?

         17                 DR. VLADECK:  I am actually hopeful,

         18  Mr. Chairman, and without, for obvious reasons

         19  getting into the specifics, that should my

         20  appointment to the Board of Health be confirmed,

         21  that will provide me with the opportunity to claim

         22  excess commitments and depart from some of the other

         23  boards, which I am currently a member.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.  I will

         25  open up the floor to questions.
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          2                 Oh, we have been joined by Council

          3  Member William Perkins and Council Member Christine

          4  Quinn.

          5                 Council Member Clarke, and then

          6  Council Member Quinn.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Good morning,

          8  Dr. Vladeck.

          9                 DR. VLADECK:  Good morning.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  In just going

         11  over some of the questions that were asked of you, I

         12  found one somewhat peculiar, given your extensive

         13  background in the health care arena. And that was

         14  the question asked of you with respect to the Health

         15  Code, and I will quote to you, it says, "In your

         16  opinion do any aspects of the City's Health Code

         17  need to be strengthened or amended, if yes, please

         18  tell the Committee what changes you envision?"  And

         19  your response to that was, "I am not yet in a

         20  position to provide an informed answer to this

         21  question."  And I was wondering given, you know, you

         22  sat on the Board of HHC, your affiliation with Mount

         23  Sinai, is not the Health Code almost integral to the

         24  work that you do?

         25                 DR. VLADECK:  I appreciate the
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          2  question.  I would say that I was very much familiar

          3  with the major provisions in the Health Code as of

          4  1992 or 1993, when I left New York to go to

          5  Washington for awhile.  There have, obviously, been

          6  a number of changes in the intervening years.  My

          7  day- to- day activities, since I came back to New

          8  York have involved issues affected by the Health

          9  Code only to a peripheral degree.  So I am really

         10  not up- to- date on changes that have taken place in

         11  the Code over the last number of years.

         12                 I am also not as informed, as I

         13  probably should be and will need to become, over

         14  parts of the Code having to do with some of the

         15  issues having to do with animal control and pests,

         16  and so forth.  I know nothing at all about the

         17  history of the issue of ferrets, for example.  So

         18  there are some, I would not claim to know

         19  everything, and I would not claim to be up- to- date

         20  on the contents of the Health Code at the moment.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

         22  Quinn.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.

         24  Hi.  I know you have done a lot of writing on many

         25  topics.  And our staff has kind of gone through some
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          2  of your things that you have published.  And in some

          3  of your writings you talked a lot with particular

          4  concern about the impact that the HIV/AIDS epidemic

          5  was going to have on the insurance system in the

          6  City and the State, and it having a negative effect

          7  and causing negative impacts.

          8                 So if you could tell me a little bit

          9  of what, if you could share with the Committee, what

         10  your concerns were and where they are now?

         11                 DR. VLADECK:  Thank you.  I do not

         12  remember the exact numbers, but in 1980 there was

         13  something like three- quarters of a million

         14  residents of New York City who had direct pay

         15  individual health insurance policies, mostly written

         16  by Blue Cross/Blue Shield.  And in the latter part

         17  of the eighties, for several reasons, but including

         18  the impact of the AIDS epidemic, the market for

         19  individual health insurance in this Metropolitan

         20  area, essentially, collapsed.  And there are now, I

         21  believe, fewer than 200,000 people who have a direct

         22  pay individual policies who reside in the City.

         23                 The prevalence of the epidemic and

         24  the cost of treatment, particularly at an earlier

         25  stage in the epidemic were so concentrated in the
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          2  Metropolitan New York area and parts of that, that

          3  it really had a significant effect on the

          4  availability of health insurance for everyone,

          5  again, particularly for the direct pay individual

          6  business.  And I do not think that we have recovered

          7  from that at all, in terms of the availability

          8  individual health insurance.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And just a

         10  little, I guess I have a little concern because it

         11  seems like in some of what I read, and even a little

         12  bit less so in your comments though, that there

         13  might almost a little bit, you know, blaming the

         14  people who are sick for the collapse of the

         15  insurance structure, as opposed to, it just, one,

         16  dealing with it as a reality of the impact of the

         17  epidemic; or two, looking perhaps at the industry

         18  being at fault for not responding and adapting to

         19  what has tragically become a ever growing epidemic.

         20  And one that certainly even if we all were to commit

         21  much more than we have, not going to disappear in

         22  any way, shape or form in the near future.

         23                 DR. VLADECK:  With all respect, I

         24  think it is fair to say that if you looked at the

         25  context of things I have written or said about
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          2  health insurance, that the notion that I would be

          3  attributing blame or responsibility to sick people

          4  for their inability to get health insurance, is just

          5  a 180 degrees inconsistent with everything I have

          6  said and done throughout my career.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay.  So with

          8  the direct pay, you are, then expand a little bit

          9  more for us on what your answer then to this, you

         10  know, problem would be, or your thoughts of where

         11  the answer should come from, to help me better

         12  understand your perspective then?

         13                 DR. VLADECK:  Well, I believe in the

         14  short run the State should reinstate the extent to

         15  which group health insurance premiums are used to

         16  subsidize the self- pay market.  But that is almost

         17  unavoidably a stop gap.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right.

         19                 DR. VLADECK:  Until we have mandatory

         20  health, universal health insurance in this country.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Which is

         22  something that you would be, or I guess, are an

         23  advocate of?

         24                 DR. VLADECK:  Absolutely.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Great.  Thank
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          2  you very much.

          3                 DR. VLADECK:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

          5  Katz.  And we have been joined by Majority Leader

          6  James Oddo from Staten Island. Minority Leader,

          7  sorry.  Hey, you know, just because we think alike

          8  election.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  I hope not.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Can we use that

         11  in your literature?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I know I will.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  To a certain

         14  extent, Dr. Vladeck, you just answered, my main

         15  question was going to be about universal health

         16  care.  I noticed some of your articles.  In my

         17  previous life I was an Assemblywoman and Chair of

         18  the Subcommittee on Urban Health up in Albany.  And

         19  so I have worked a lot when the Mayor at the time

         20  tried to privatize the HHC hospitals, especially

         21  Coney Island, Elmhurst Hospital and Queens Hospital,

         22  which, obviously, I was against.  And at the time,

         23  indigent health care was, obviously, the number one

         24  issue and how people would get health care.  And I

         25  noticed one of your articles is, "How Much Indigent
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          2  Care Should Hospitals Provide?"  And I guess I was

          3  wondering what the answer was to you?

          4                 DR. VLADECK:  I honestly do not

          5  remember.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Well you can

          7  generalize it.

          8                 DR. VLADECK:  I think I was assigned

          9  the piece.  My view is, in New York State, which is,

         10  unfortunately, in a way significantly more

         11  progressive than most of the rest of the country on

         12  these issues.  I say unfortunately, because most of

         13  the rest of the country is quite laggedly in this

         14  regard.  But in New York State, I think it is the

         15  affirmative obligation of every hospital that is

         16  capable not only to operate a full service emergency

         17  department and to treat folks who come in presenting

         18  in the emergency department, but to give the whole

         19  range of treatments that may be implied or

         20  necessitated by their conditions, even if that

         21  involves surgical procedures or other things that

         22  are technically elective of one sort or another.

         23                 I think it is the law in this State,

         24  appropriately so, that every hospital have and

         25  update regularly a community service plan
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          2  identifying other ways in which it helps to address

          3  the needs of the under- served and the under-

          4  insured in its communities.

          5                 I wish that the Health Department

          6  took those plans a little bit more seriously in

          7  terms of actually reading them and seeking to

          8  enforce some of the requirements associated with

          9  that. But, in general, I would say that not- for-

         10  profit hospitals in New York State, ought to provide

         11  as much indigent care as they can consistent with

         12  financial viability over time, I think that is the

         13  law.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  So you would be

         15  for, so basically, you would be for keeping our

         16  public hospitals, making sure they were adequately

         17  funded, fixing a system if it should go wrong as

         18  opposed to getting rid of it and privatizing?

         19                 DR. VLADECK:  In terms of the public

         20  hospital system, I think there is always question as

         21  to whether the exact current configuration of HHC

         22  resources is ideal, or whether they should not be

         23  redeployed somewhat.  But this City cannot survive

         24  and its residents could not survive without a strong

         25  public hospital system.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Thank you very

          3  much, Sir.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Any other

          5  questions?  Okay.  I understand that you are a

          6  legacy in some ways, that your grandfather was a

          7  member of this Board.

          8                 DR. VLADECK:  Yes, Sir.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, that is

         10  interesting in a lot of different ways.

         11                 How would you envision the greatest

         12  challenge, what do you envision is the greatest

         13  challenge facing this Board in the next couple of

         14  years?

         15                 DR. VLADECK:  It is hard to rank

         16  comparatively three or four things that are all

         17  critically important.  I think the most immediate

         18  has to do with helping to build and strengthen the

         19  infrastructure involved in the City's capacity to

         20  respond to terrorist activities, particularly bio-

         21  terrorism, but other terrorist activities of one

         22  sort or another.

         23                 Obviously, the New York City

         24  Department of Health has an outstanding leadership

         25  record relative to others around the country.  But
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          2  so much of these questions are new or novel or old

          3  and novel, because we have not dealt with things

          4  like smallpox in so many years.  That I think that

          5  is going to be a very high priority, immediate

          6  challenge.

          7                 At the same time, we continue to have

          8  the HIV epidemic spreading at historic rates in

          9  communities of color, and people tend to forget it.

         10  And if you tend to forget it, the rates start to go

         11  back up again, so we cannot sort of push that aside

         12  while we are focusing on some of the more immediate

         13  issues.

         14                 Those would be the first two that

         15  come to my mind, Sir.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.  We

         17  have been joined by Majority Leader Joel Rivera from

         18  the Bronx, good morning.  And our Speaker, Gifford

         19  Miller is working the telephones, trying to keep in

         20  contact with all of his members, so, good morning.

         21                 Council Member Perkins had a

         22  question, and then Council Member Avella.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you

         24  very much.  I want to first express my appreciation

         25  of your understanding of the pandemic of HIV/AIDS in
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          2  communities of color, and that is a perspective that

          3  we are very much pushing in the Council, and would

          4  very much like to be in partnership with the

          5  Department of Health and the Board of Health.

          6                 Similarly, I wanted to get some of

          7  your thoughts with regard to the infant mortality

          8  issues that are particularly stubborn in communities

          9  of color.

         10                 And then last, but not least, you

         11  know my pet project is rats.  And there is a lot of

         12  studies coming out showing that the rat- borne

         13  diseases, like leptospirosis, are becoming more and

         14  more common in the urban context.  And I must say,

         15  recently, new protocols have been established thanks

         16  to the work of this Council, the Select Committee on

         17  Pest Control, in which veterinarians are being asked

         18  to test and report the incidents of leptospirosis,

         19  particularly in dogs, because they also spread it,

         20  unfortunately, to people, as well.

         21                 So, I just wanted to know if you had

         22  any thoughts about infant mortality and if you have

         23  had any thoughts about this phenomena of rat- borne

         24  diseases that are becoming more prevalent in our

         25  City?
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          2                 DR. VLADECK:  If I may take those in

          3  turn?  One of the other organizations, where I do

          4  not believe there will be conflicts, but where we

          5  may need to clarify appropriate, in which I am

          6  involved is the National March of Dimes, which has

          7  taken a leadership role in infant well being and

          8  birth outcomes for several decades, and in which I

          9  am learning a lot.  And the fact is for all the new

         10  science and all the new analyses, as best I

         11  understand it, the differential in birth outcomes

         12  among ethnic groups and among socio- economic groups

         13  is still almost entirely a function of access to

         14  early, high- quality prenatal care.  And, again,

         15  this is one of those issues that you never solve,

         16  that you can make very significant headway at, for

         17  some period of time.  But then if you do not

         18  continue working, if you do not continue the

         19  community- based outreach, if you do not continue to

         20  support local communities that people can

         21  comfortably go to and be comfortable going to, your

         22  progress is going to gradually erode.  And so, there

         23  is no sort of magic associated with the question of

         24  what needs to be done, it is just a question of

         25  putting the right resources and the right commitment
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          2  to making sure that pregnant women get early, high

          3  quality prenatal care.

          4                 On the rats issue, as I suggested

          5  earlier almost anything having to do with animals is

          6  not within my areas of expertise.  But my

          7  understanding of this is, first of all, this is not

          8  just a health issue narrowly defined, this is a

          9  community, a well being in a community, a community

         10  health issue.

         11                 And second, again, it seems to me

         12  that from a public administration, public policy

         13  point of view, this is not a question of some fancy

         14  new technology that is going to solve all our

         15  problems.  This is basic blocking and tackling of

         16  sanitation, of cleaning up vacant lots, of sealing

         17  off points of entry into individual buildings and

         18  close surveillance relative to evidence of rat

         19  infestation, of getting folks out into the field all

         20  the time, both preventively and in response to

         21  evidence of rat infestation and so forth.  It is

         22  just a matter of having the leadership and the

         23  resources and the commitment to sort of doing the

         24  hard routine, continual work of rodent control, and

         25  we have to do it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  I assume

          3  that, in those last two statements you are asserting

          4  your commitment in terms of infant mortality and in

          5  terms of this rat phenomena?

          6                 DR. VLADECK:  Well, with all due

          7  respect, Councilman, I think people can come before

          8  this body at an Advice and Consent Hearing and say

          9  all kinds of things.  And I do, but in addition, I

         10  think the empirical evidence of things I have done

         11  professionally over the last number of years is very

         12  much consistent with that as well.  I have been

         13  working on this stuff a long time, I wish we could

         14  all feel a greater sense of fulfillment and

         15  completion.  But the commitment is, obviously, very

         16  basic and very important to me.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 DR. VLADECK:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

         21  Avella.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Good morning.

         23                 DR. VLADECK:  Good morning.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  I have two

         25  quick questions, and not only for yourself, but the
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          2  other members, the other candidates, when they have

          3  the opportunity to speak.

          4                 One, it is my understanding that the

          5  candidates that we have seen recently and yourselves

          6  included, all come from private hospital experience.

          7    And that there is one remaining slot available on

          8  the Board of Health, how do you feel about having

          9  that one remaining slot filled by somebody who has

         10  the public hospital experience, somebody involved

         11  with HHC or somebody who has had that experience?

         12                 DR. VLADECK:  I, I think that is a

         13  good idea.  I would point out again, with some pride

         14  that I did, I was appointed to the Board of Health

         15  of the Hospitals Corporation by two consecutive

         16  Mayors.  And from a governance point of view had a

         17  very extensive involvement in the public hospital

         18  system in this city.

         19                 So, even though I am now employed at

         20  a private medical center, I would, I am just a

         21  little personally uncomfortable about being sort of

         22  pigeon hold in that way, but I think there is a lot

         23  room with the 11th member for representing or

         24  responding to concerns about issues that come before

         25  the Board. And I think that is one that is very
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          2  legitimately high on the list.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Okay.  And

          4  the second question, again, for all the candidates.

          5  West Nile Virus, which has been a problem in the

          6  City of New York for some years, and now we are

          7  finding various pools throughout the City.  And I

          8  think the Department of Health is going to be doing

          9  some ground spraying.

         10                 What is your opinion as opposed

         11  ground spraying, aerial spraying, should we be doing

         12  more than what is being done?

         13                 DR. VLADECK:  That is another animal

         14  issue.  Other than to say again, from what I

         15  understand and what I know, in as a result of the

         16  fiscal crisis of the City in the seventies and the

         17  subsequent erosion of various public functions, and

         18  some of the State reductions in later years, some of

         19  the basic sort of blocking and tackling

         20  infrastructure relative to public health activities

         21  was allowed to erode in the City.  And rodent

         22  control was one of those areas, and mosquito control

         23  is another.

         24                 It is not very glamorous, it is not

         25  very exciting, it is not very high technology yet.
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          2  It is very sort of micro level, community- based,

          3  going after those spots where larvae breeder and so

          4  and so forth, but you have to do it.  And over time

          5  the key for a strategy of control of the West Nile

          6  Virus is the control of the bugs.  And to control

          7  the bugs, you have got to be out there draining the

          8  pools, and you know, making sure that people do not

          9  let them collect in their backyards.

         10                 So, I mean, that seems to me to be a

         11  pretty straightforward kind of issue.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Thank you.

         13  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you,

         15  Council member.  I just want to remind the Council

         16  members that we do have a Housing and Buildings

         17  Committee meeting, and I think most of us serve on

         18  that Committee also.  And in due respect, so that is

         19  dealing with a sprinkler issue, and also, in

         20  reflection that I think these are three esteemed

         21  candidates.  We can, might move a little quicker. We

         22  all want to espouse on health philosophy and health

         23  concerns, and I hate to inhibit the great work of

         24  the staff that has researched your backgrounds and

         25  your experience.  Unfortunately, time is not
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          2  something that we have plenty of, unfortunately.  It

          3  seems the more that we do, the less time we have to

          4  either enunciate it or go through it.

          5                 I did get a chance to read every

          6  member's background, but I would hope that we can

          7  move forward expeditiously.

          8                 So in that regard, thank you, Dr.

          9  Vladeck.

         10                 DR. VLADECK:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  And we will be

         12  voting shortly.

         13                 DR. VLADECK:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Dr. Vlahov,

         15  could you raise your right hand to be sworn in,

         16  please?

         17                 MR. O'MALLEY:  Do you solemnly swear

         18  or affirm that the testimony you are about to give

         19  us, is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

         20  the truth?

         21                 DR. VLAHOV:  I do.

         22                 MR. O'MALLEY:  Please state your name

         23  and affiliation, for the record.

         24                 DR. VLAHOV:  My name is David Vlahov,

         25  and I am with the Center for Urban Epidemiologic
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          2  Studies at the New York Academy of Medicine.

          3                 MR. O'MALLEY:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Do you have an

          5  opening statement, Doctor?

          6                 DR. VLAHOV:  Just a brief one.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.

          8                 DR. VLAHOV:  I am very honored to be

          9  in front of this Committee, and to have the

         10  opportunity to serve New York.  I have a background

         11  in doing clinical nursing for a decade, as well as

         12  academics.  And also, now, prominently as an

         13  epidemiologist working on a variety of health care

         14  issues.

         15                 So I am pleased to be able to bring

         16  these types of services to the citizens of New York.

         17    I am proud to be a New Yorker, and I am pleased to

         18  be here today.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.  I

         21  understand as a epidemiologist that you did do a

         22  study on the effects of 9/11, and would you care to

         23  espouse on that briefly, or just in terms of your

         24  role as how you can help to bring that to some, make

         25  that part of your mission as here in the Department
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          2  of Health as a Board member?

          3                 DR. VLAHOV:  At the New York Academy

          4  of Medicine, within five weeks of the disaster, we

          5  had assembled a needs assessment of the City of New

          6  York.  And had done a phone survey, which was a

          7  random digit dial, first, of residents of Manhattan;

          8  the second survey included all boroughs.  And the

          9  idea was to identify the impact of the disaster

         10  psychologically, because we recognized that this

         11  disaster would not only affect people that were

         12  directly in the building or the rescue workers, but

         13  all New Yorkers.  And so our job was to estimate the

         14  levels of post traumatic stress disorder and

         15  depression, as well as anxiety panic attacks that

         16  had occurred.

         17                 And what we found were rates that

         18  were part of an estimate that went to the City and

         19  State Office of Mental Health to contribute to the

         20  application for FEMA Assistance Funds.

         21                 In our follow- up surveys, what we

         22  are seeing, and I think this is very important, is

         23  that while in five to eight weeks after the disaster

         24  these rates were considerable, that within four

         25  months we were already seeing some resolution within
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          2  the population.  And I think New Yorkers are

          3  starting to get better, and that is an important

          4  advance.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.

          6  Council Member Fidler.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chairman. Doctor, I noticed in your answers to

          9  your questions, you indicated that you believed your

         10  name was put forward for nomination by Dr. Freiden.

         11  And I would ask you to tell us a little about what

         12  your relationship is with Dr. Freiden and whether or

         13  not you feel that given your relationship, whatever

         14  that may be, that you will be able to be an

         15  independent member of the Board overseeing or

         16  working in conjunction with his agency?

         17                 DR. VLAHOV:  Prior to Dr. Freiden

         18  becoming Commissioner, he and I had absolutely no

         19  conversations or connections with each other

         20  whatsoever.  I knew of him by reputation for the

         21  excellent work that he had done on the multiply drug

         22  resistant TB epidemic in New York City, but we had

         23  had no personal contact.

         24                 And how the name came, my name came

         25  to him, as part of the nomination process is unknown
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          2  to me.  I do believe that I can be an independent

          3  contributor to the Board, because of no personal

          4  relationship with the Commissioner.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I appreciate

          6  that, and I think it behooves each of the members to

          7  bear in mind that they need to be independent,

          8  regardless of how your name came forward.  And along

          9  those lines, I just want to point out that it has

         10  come to the attention of, at least, some members of

         11  the Committee that there is a great Mount Sinai

         12  connection amongst many of you, not just those of

         13  you who are here today, but the prior nominees.  And

         14  I think, with all due respect to that fine

         15  institution, you need to be mindful of the

         16  tremendous amount, the tremendous percentage of

         17  Board members that have affiliations with Mount

         18  Sinai, should any Mount Sinai- related issues come

         19  before the Board.  And so I would just call that to

         20  your attention, having the opportunity to do it this

         21  morning.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

         24  Clarke.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Chair.  Good morning, Dr. Vlahov.

          3                 DR. VLAHOV:  Good morning.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  I have a

          5  similar question because I noticed again when you

          6  were asked the question with respect the Health

          7  Code, you stated that you are not in a position to

          8  respond to the question.  And given, you know, your

          9  recent activities, even with respect to September

         10  11th, or just in general.  You know, do you have a

         11  sense of any concerns with respect to the Health

         12  Codes at this time?

         13                 DR. VLAHOV:  The role that I have

         14  had, up to this point, has been as an academic

         15  epidemiologist and researcher providing expert

         16  opinion to public health officials.  And so I had

         17  not emersed myself within the specifics of the Code,

         18  and see that as my initial job upon confirmation to

         19  take on that role.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  And I was

         21  wondering if any of your work, study, or research

         22  has put you into the arena of immigrant communities

         23  and the types of public health concerns we have

         24  there, and if you could share that with us?  I have

         25  a very large immigrant population in my community,
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          2  and many of our colleagues do.  I would like to get

          3  your sense because that is an area that I do not

          4  find that we focus enough on as a city, and there

          5  are very specific indicators of real public health

          6  issues within those communities, if you would give

          7  us your opinion there?

          8                 DR. VLAHOV:  I think immigrant health

          9  is one of the top issues for consideration by the

         10  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.  I think it

         11  is an area that has not received sufficient

         12  attention in the past, and certainly, should now and

         13  in the future.

         14                 The idea of health access, the idea

         15  of what the health conditions, what are the ways to

         16  do appropriate community outreach, to do prevention

         17  work, as well as curative type of work is a top

         18  focus.

         19                 In the number of studies that I have

         20  seen, as well as the ones that I have participated

         21  in as a researcher, this is an area that is very

         22  important not only for the communities themselves,

         23  but for all New Yorkers.  And I think that is one of

         24  the reasons to make sure that this is a top issue.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member
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          2  Avella had a standing question.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Yes, the same

          4  two questions that I asked, I would appreciate you

          5  answering as well, the West Nile Virus, and also,

          6  the remaining member, should it be somebody with

          7  more public hospital experience?

          8                 DR. VLAHOV:  I should say my

          9  background as a nurse was in public hospitals,

         10  although they were in Maryland.  And I worked ward

         11  service for a number of years, and also, worked in

         12  federal public hospitals as well.  And I think that

         13  type of representation is important to have on the

         14  Committee, on the Board, I am sorry, on the Board.

         15  And I am not fully aware of the background of all of

         16  the Board members, but I think that is an important

         17  consideration.

         18                 In terms of the West Nile Virus, the

         19  idea of ground spraying versus air spraying, there

         20  is information that goes back and forth.  I think

         21  ground spraying is an appropriate strategy to use,

         22  it is more focused.

         23                 Certainly, with aerial spraying, you

         24  know, there is certainly a concern of drift of the

         25  spray, you know, raises public concern in terms of
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          2  quality of life and quality of life issues.

          3                 So, again, I think in this particular

          4  strategy it is very well thought out.  I think the

          5  idea of putting together a more focus ground

          6  approach is appropriate.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

          8  Perkins has a question.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  I just

         10  wanted to ask you to respond to the concerns that I

         11  raised earlier, particularly in regard to infant

         12  mortality and rat- borne diseases.

         13                 I noticed, for instance, you have

         14  extensive involvement in the Harlem, East Harlem

         15  community, which I represent.  And so, I am sure you

         16  must have some awareness of those kinds of issues,

         17  and perhaps you can elaborate?

         18                 DR. VLAHOV:  Absolutely.  As part of

         19  the New York Academy of Medicine, which an

         20  independent, non- profit organization that is

         21  devoted to the health of the public, we have some

         22  activities that are ongoing, one of which is an

         23  Urban Research Center, which involves partnership

         24  with 30 community- based organizations in Harlem and

         25  in the South Bronx, and also, four academic
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          2  partners.  And the City Health Department certainly

          3  has involvement in presence at the meetings to be

          4  able to talk about health issues and what are some

          5  creative community- driven strategies.

          6                 The issue of rats in the community is

          7  certainly one that is a big concern, and one that

          8  merits, certainly, the close attention.

          9                 While I was in Maryland, I was

         10  involved in a number of studies.  Jamie Childs was

         11  the person who went out and did studies in the

         12  communities tracking rats and other animals in terms

         13  of looking at infectious risks.  Some of the studies

         14  that I did, was to look at individuals to see at

         15  what was the level of infection within community

         16  members given that there were these risks in the

         17  community.

         18                 One example that we looked at was

         19  Hunter Virus.  And in Hunter Virus what we saw was

         20  that there was only one individual out of 600 that

         21  was infected, even though there was a considerable

         22  infestation within the rats that were being tested

         23  in the community at that time.  So I think it is

         24  important to get good information to do those types

         25  of studies.
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          2                 We started to do some of these types

          3  of studies within Harlem and South Bronx, and

          4  certainly we hope to be working together with the

          5  Department of Health and to encourage these types of

          6  studies to get answers, to be able to have sound

          7  public health information to come back to the

          8  public, to then have creative strategies and

          9  appropriate strategies to return on that.

         10                 In terms of the infant mortality, I

         11  agree entirely with the points that were brought up

         12  by Dr. Vladeck, and that is the emphasis on prenatal

         13  care, having the resources that are available, the

         14  community outreach to do it, and culturally

         15  appropriate and sensitive way the variety of

         16  communities that make up New York is a very, very

         17  important response.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you

         19  very much.  I had a chance to become aware of that

         20  Maryland State, which was very significant in

         21  raising the fact that leptospirosis was becoming

         22  more and more common in urban areas.  And so, I am

         23  glad to hear that you have some familiarity with it.

         24                 Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  No other
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          2  questions, then thank you, Dr. Vlahov.  And now we

          3  will hear from Dr. Sixto Caro, if you could raise

          4  your right hand and be sworn in, please?

          5                 MR. O'MALLEY:  Do you solemnly swear

          6  or affirm that the testimony you are about to give

          7  us, is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

          8  the truth?

          9                 DR. CARO:  I do.

         10                 MR. O'MALLEY:  Please state you name

         11  and affiliation for the record?

         12                 DR. CARO:  I am Sixto Caro, and I am

         13  in private practice, I am related with several

         14  hospitals.  My first hospital has been and still is,

         15  Cabrini Medical Center, though I am affiliated with

         16  Beth Israel and Brooklyn Hospital.

         17                 I was born in the Dominican Republic,

         18  became a Naturalized Citizen, and that is my

         19  background.

         20                 MR. O'MALLEY:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Do you have an

         22  opening statement, Dr. Caro?

         23                 DR. CARO:  A brief opening statement

         24  will be that with such expertise of my colleagues

         25  here and on previous occasion, I think that the
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          2  Department of Health and the Board of Health should

          3  have a balance among all the members.  But we,

          4  doctors who are in private practice, and we call

          5  ourselves in the trenches, seeing patients every

          6  day, day- by- day, should have also a role to play,

          7  not only at the individual level of seeing patients,

          8  but also, implementation, questioning, asking and

          9  deciding a broad range of decision- making at the

         10  level of the Department of Health. Because we are

         11  there, when we find a skin rash or in any age, from

         12  children to the elderly, after September 11th, right

         13  away our mind and our brain is working in the

         14  direction of our colleagues who are more expert in

         15  that direction.

         16                 I think the idea of having private

         17  practice representatives at the Board is a very good

         18  example of our broad range of balance that should be

         19  in the Board.  True, I am a member of the American

         20  College of Physicians, which I am proud to be, of

         21  the New York American Society, we value the work of

         22  the New York Academy of Medicine and of each of the

         23  entity in our level that help in the care of our

         24  patients.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you, Dr.
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          2  Caro.  Council Member Reyna just disappeared, I

          3  thought she was going to say something.  But as the

          4  members know, she put in a letter of support for

          5  your appointment, and espoused your qualifications,

          6  your professional credentials and your commitment to

          7  improving the quality of life in the community.  So,

          8  in that regard, I thought she might want to make a

          9  quick statement to support your candidacy.

         10                 Council Member Reyna.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you,

         12  Chairman.  I just wanted to thank all three

         13  candidates.  I wanted to just commend Dr. Sixto Caro

         14  from Williamsburg, who is an astounding physician,

         15  and not only because he treats my family, - -

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Oh, that is it

         17  now.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  No conflict of

         19  interest there.  But because he is a true citizen of

         20  our community.  He has been a remarkable advocate of

         21  patients, health, and he continues to be there not

         22  only as their doctor, but also as a friend.

         23                 The office, when you visit him is

         24  crowded to the extreme of the halls are packed, you

         25  cannot go through to go see him.  Everyone trusts
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          2  themselves under his care.  And it just goes to show

          3  you what a true friend, what a true doctor, and a

          4  true, loyal citizen of our community he is and will

          5  always be.

          6                 And I think the Board of Health would

          7  have a great asset representing immigrants,

          8  representing patient care, representing all of our

          9  interests here in this Council, and I highly

         10  recommend him with great recommendation.

         11                 So, thank you very much for letting

         12  me speak, and congratulations to all three of you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you,

         14  Council member. With that being said, does anyone

         15  dare have questions of him? Council Member Avella

         16  has a standing question for you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Yes, the

         18  standing two questions that I have been asking each

         19  candidate, if you would respond, in terms of the

         20  West Nile Virus, and the remaining member having

         21  public health, public hospital experience?

         22                 DR. CARO:  With the West Nile Virus

         23  question, we will follow the advice of the experts,

         24  because in medicine many of us, all of us, all of

         25  the doctors value the research work done by our
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          2  colleagues.  That means that we are almost at the

          3  same level as you, their recommendations, following

          4  the research.  And it helps from information and

          5  research that we value, primarily at the American

          6  College of Physicians and at the Academic Center in

          7  New York and all over the country.

          8                 In relation to the other question of

          9  the balance of the remaining slot for the Board, I

         10  think it should be, it is a good way to put it.  But

         11  do not forget, I hope that you know that at the

         12  level of physicians who are in private practice, we

         13  do not have a high value of the some of the center

         14  in the City.  From the critical point of view that

         15  can be better, then I think it is a good balance.

         16  But many of us in private practice, consider them a

         17  little bit of people who get used to the system, who

         18  get the salary, who are not deficient, some of them,

         19  not all of them.  Then you have to, I think it would

         20  be a good value for the Board.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.  Dr. Caro,

         22  there were two items, as any investigation when they

         23  start to go through everything in your history,

         24  there is always something that we forgot to do, or

         25  something that did not get cleaned up.  And in the
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          2  investigation there were two findings that there

          3  were some things that you had to attend to, and we

          4  just wanted to get your assurance today that those

          5  matters would be addressed and the information given

          6  to our office as soon as possible?  I do not want to

          7  go into the details, because it is not necessary to

          8  air them at this particular meeting.  But I think

          9  you had gone over them with our Counsel, and you are

         10  aware of what those two items were.  It is just, one

         11  is actually just a technical matter, and another one

         12  was just to clear up some technical violations with

         13  HPD.

         14                 DR. CARO:  Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  So if we could

         16  just get you on record saying that you would get

         17  that information back to us?

         18                 DR. CARO:  Yes.  As far as I remember

         19  the housing, the HPD issue, - -

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Right.

         21                 DR. CARO: - -  is failure to report

         22  the multiple dwelling where we have our office.  It

         23  is a two- family house, and a small apartment for

         24  the caretaker, and how HPD will inspect the

         25  building.  And if it is a two- family house, housing
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          2  has nothing to do with it.  If it is a three- family

          3  house, then we have to file every year, and we will

          4  be penalized with Department correction of the

          5  failure to report in 1996 and 1997, those two.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, and you

          7  will get that information back to us as soon as it

          8  is cleared up?

          9                 DR. CARO:  Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, thank you.

         11    With that being said, I think that we are prepared

         12  to end this part of the hearing, and vote on the

         13  members that we have, candidates that we have before

         14  us.

         15                 Now remember, our members, we do have

         16  another part of the meeting today dealing with the

         17  rules changes, so don't everybody leave.  So at this

         18  point I would like to vote on all three candidates

         19  at once.  We do not have anyone from Legislative

         20  Documents to call the role, so do I have to

         21  filibuster?  Oh, they are on their way upstairs,

         22  yes, I do not really want to filibuster this

         23  morning.  Why don't you just run down the role and

         24  let them know?  Or we could just do a voice vote in

         25  the affirmative, and they can record it.  They are
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          2  on their way up.

          3                 As we have some members in the other

          4  room at the Housing and Building Committee hearing

          5  that have to come in and record their vote anyway.

          6  Did we miss anything that you wanted to talk about,

          7  since we are in a filibuster mode, was there any

          8  personal?  Can we get one of the interns to act and

          9  the Legislative Documents person?  All right, I

         10  would just like to do the vote, and then we can have

         11  the Counsel inform them, - -  Here we go, all right.

         12    Can we call all the Council members in so we can

         13  get these two rounds of votes done?

         14                 All right, we are going to vote on,

         15  at this time, on the three members to be appointed

         16  to the Board of Health, Dr. Bruce Vladeck, Dr. David

         17  Vlahov, and Dr. Sixto Caro.  Okay, and as you know,

         18  the vote will remain open for any members that had

         19  to run out to another meeting.  So can we, do we

         20  need to do a roll call?  Can we vote on those three

         21  members and appointments now, please?  Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Comrie.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Yes to all.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Provenzano.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  I would
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          2  just like to explain my vote.  I know you have seen

          3  me running in and out, but I have read all the

          4  stuff, and I am the Chair of the next meeting that

          5  they are talking about, that is why.  But I think it

          6  is our honor that such esteemed gentlemen, like

          7  yourself, want to serve on this Board.  So, I vote

          8  yes.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Perkins.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  I want to

         11  vote yes on all, and want to extend my

         12  congratulations to all of you.  You seem to have

         13  outstanding resumes and outstanding interests in our

         14  City, and particularly in the health and well being

         15  of our citizens.  And I am happy to know that you

         16  have some familiarity with the kind of concerns

         17  related to infant mortality, rodent- borne diseases,

         18  HIV/AIDS and the like.  Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Quinn.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Aye on all.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Avella.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  It is my

         23  pleasure to vote aye on all.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Clarke.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  May I be
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          2  excused a moment to explain my vote?  Thank you.  I

          3  would like to say that we, I am certainly pleased

          4  with the credentials that you all have presented

          5  here today.  I think that you will certainly lend a

          6  lot of value to the Board, and there are some really

          7  important issues facing our city at this time.  So I

          8  think your appointments are quite timely.

          9                 I would like to just note for the

         10  Committee and for the Mayor's Office that I do have

         11  some concerns about this common thread of linkage of

         12  many of our appointees to Mount Sinai, not from the

         13  point of view that it is not a reputable or a

         14  wonderful organization, but should some issues come

         15  up in the City of New York, what will happen with

         16  members on the Board in terms of their ability to

         17  act.  So that is one of my concerns, and it is also

         18  my hope that that will be taken into consideration

         19  with the next appointee that comes up.

         20                 However, it is certainly my pleasure

         21  to join with my colleagues, thus far, in voting aye

         22  on all.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Fidler.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Aye on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Katz.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Aye on all.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Weprin.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Aye on all.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Oddo.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  We will be

          8  holding the vote open.   Thank you very much,

          9  gentlemen, and we appreciate your service to the

         10  City.  I would also echo Councilwoman Clarke's

         11  message regarding the Mount Sinai linkage.  And

         12  while we know that you gentlemen are independently

         13  well qualified, we just want to make sure that

         14  everybody on the Board is not linked to Mount Sinai

         15  in one way or another.  Thank you very much

         16  gentlemen.

         17                 Also, we would like to role right

         18  into the next topic, which is the Resolution

         19  amending certain Rules of the Council.  You have all

         20  had an opportunity to read it, I think most people

         21  are aware of the intricacies of it, so I will not go

         22  through it.  These are primarily technical changes

         23  dealing with how we propose, a technical change

         24  dealing with the requiring of filing of disclosure

         25  statements, which is a redundancy since every
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          2  Council member had to file disclosure statements.

          3  There is no point in filing a duplicate statement

          4  for the same thing.

          5                 Also, the rule that was rule 5.10,

          6  which is going to be a technical change to repeal

          7  Rule 10.80.

          8                 We have Rule 7.0, which would

          9  underline proposed amendments to make the Council

         10  standing committees subject matter jurisdiction

         11  consistent with new agency designations that

         12  resulted from the approval of the Charter Commission

         13  questions by the public in the 2001 election.  As an

         14  example, what had been previously known as the

         15  Department of Health is to be called the Department

         16  of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         17                 And Rule 7.50 c, which is designating

         18  the Oversight and Investigations, as one of the

         19  standing committees not required to hold at least

         20  one meeting per month.

         21                 And I am not going to read everything

         22  else.  If there are any other questions on this?

         23  This is primarily also dealing with the rules of how

         24  we deal with immediate consideration. So if unless

         25  there are any questions on the above?  Council
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          2  Member Clarke.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Mr. Chair, I

          4  do have a question about Rule 7, and I know this

          5  issue has come up.  But if I remember correctly,

          6  during the Public Charter Commission questions that

          7  came up in 2001, the Department of Health was

          8  actually changed to the Department of Public Health

          9  by the public. Isn't that correct?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  That is correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  And now there

         12  is another change, and I am not sure how that change

         13  came about, where we have the Department of Health

         14  and Mental Hygiene.  And I think it is important for

         15  the public to know how and why that occurred.

         16  Because they actually voted for the Department of

         17  Public Health, and this, to my knowledge, has not

         18  been put before the public again.  So I would just

         19  like to, for the record, just state what that is

         20  about.  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  A local law was

         22  recommended by the Mayor's Office and I think the

         23  Committee Chair, and they had a meeting and hearings

         24  on it, and it was decided that the name be changed

         25  to the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene,
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          2  which is really something that came out after the

          3  vote was done.  And they were able to make

          4  legislative changes, and this is still part of the

          5  public's mandate to make that agency a more, make it

          6  a little clearer.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  If I could add

          8  in?  What the voters actually voted on was the idea,

          9  which actually I did not agree with, but that is

         10  neither here or there, that the idea of taking the

         11  Department of Health and the Department of Mental

         12  Health and making them one agency.

         13                 In the referendum it also said that

         14  the new agency would be called the Department of

         15  Public Health.  So the Government Operations

         16  Committee, although I Chair the Health Committee, I

         17  also serve on Gov. Op., voted on a bill regarding

         18  the name.  The merger, which was really the

         19  significant part of what the voters voted on stayed.

         20                 The Commissioner, after consultation,

         21  with actually a fair broad array of stakeholders in

         22  the Health Care System in the City, felt like if you

         23  had the Department of Public Health that that sent

         24  one message about what their mandate was, and since

         25  their mandate is actually inclusive of public
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          2  health, but broader than that and that they have

          3  other things as well, he felt that was too narrow.

          4  He felt it was also important given the merger to

          5  make sure people understood where the mental health

          6  functions now were, which is why he put in Mental

          7  Hygiene.  So that is why he came to the Council

          8  asking not for a change in the merger, but in a

          9  change in the title for a name which he felt better

         10  reflected what the voters had actually done by

         11  bringing the two together.

         12                 And Gov. Ops. Approved that.  And

         13  also, I am sorry, at the hearing of Gov. Ops.,

         14  Council Member Lopez, who Chairs the Committee on

         15  Mental Health, Mental Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug

         16  Abuse and Disability Services, said she was

         17  supportive of the new name change, as well as did I.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Thank you,

         19  Council Member Quinn.  And thank you, Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you for

         21  bringing that up. I just want to, the Counsel for

         22  the Committee is reminding me that there is a word

         23  that is incorrect on a couple:

         24                 On 7.70 and anywhere after where it

         25  says legislative document unit, it should be
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          2  legislative document division.  So that is just one

          3  technical correction in the required, in 7.70 and

          4  8.40 and 8.50, and anywhere else that it may be

          5  indicated that we did not catch, the legislative

          6  document unit is incorrect, it should be legislative

          7  documents division.

          8                 So with that being said, and unless

          9  there are any other questions or inquiries as to the

         10  resolutions amending the rules, I would like to get

         11  a vote on it at this time.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Comrie.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Aye on all.  And

         14  before I concede, this has been the result of the

         15  many meetings and many discussions with individual

         16  members on these rules changes.  And its primary

         17  purpose is to make certain issues less divisive that

         18  are clear to some members and not clear to others,

         19  especially when there is a resolution of, in

         20  consequential matters that one member may not be

         21  familiar with and does not want to inhibit the

         22  process to vote in the negative.  And I think this

         23  is a way to resolve that, it also streamlines a

         24  process that we put together for immediate

         25  consideration resolutions, and gives it a proper
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          2  hearing, if need be, in the respective subcommittees

          3  that it would go forth. It gives an opportunity to

          4  clean up some other technical matters, and I want to

          5  congratulate, Tom McMahon and Ed O'Malley and

          6  everyone that has been working hard to get all of

          7  this English put into the technical matter so that

          8  these rules would make sense in the long run for

          9  other members to follow.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Provenzano.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Quinn.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Avella.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Clarke.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Fidler.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Katz.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Weprin.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Oddo.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Perkins.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 10 in

          6  the affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

          7  abstentions, all items are adopted. Please, sign the

          8  Committee reports.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 12:00 p.m.)
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